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1                      P R O C E E D I N G S

2 (HEARING COMMENCED AT 2:30 P.M.)

3           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Pursuant to the authority invested in

4 me by the State of Illinois and the Illinois Commerce

5 Commission, I now call Docket T13-0080 for a hearing.

6    May we have the appearances for the record, starting with

7 Petitioner.

8           MR. WETZEL:  Yes, your Honor, my name is Nathan

9 Wetzel.  I'm from Graham & Graham, that's 1201 South 8th

10 Street, Springfield, Illinois 62704.  Phone number (217)

11 523-4569.  I'm here on behalf of the Illinois Midland

12 Railroad.

13           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  And Road District 5?

14           MR. TICE:  Jerry Tice, attorney at law, 101 East

15 Douglas Street, Petersburg, Illinois 62675.  Phone number is

16 (217) 632-2282.  Appearing on behalf of Road District No. 5.

17           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Thank you.  Mr. Toliver?

18           MR. TOLIVER:  Aaron Toliver, T-O-L-I-V-E-R.  I'm a

19 Railroad Safety Specialist representing the staff of the

20 Illinois Commerce Commission Railroad Safety Division.

21           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  And let the record show

22 that on behalf of Menard County, Illinois today, which is

23 named as a Respondent, but is -- the county is not represented

24 by an attorney, but the county engineer Tom Casson,

25 C-A-S-S-O-N, is present and is not expected to testify, but
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1 has stated his position on behalf of the county.

2           Okay.  So who's going to testify?

3           MR. TICE:  Brent Weatherford is going to testify on

4 behalf of the Illinois-Midland Railroad, your Honor.

5           JUDGE DUGGAN:  So you don't expect any other

6 testimony; is that correct?

7           MR. WETZEL:  I do not expect to call any other

8 witnesses, no, your Honor.

9           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Do you have any witnesses

10 you're going to call?

11           MR. TICE:  No, your Honor.

12           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Raise your right hand, Mr.

13 Weatherford.

14                       BRENT WEATHERFORD,

15 Of lawful age, having been produced, sworn and examined,

16 testified as follows:

17           THE WITNESS:  Yes, your Honor.

18           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Thank you very much.

19                       DIRECT EXAMINATION

20 BY MR. WETZEL:

21       Q.  All right.  Mr. Weatherford, what is your

22 profession, sir?

23       A.  Vice President of Engineering for Genesee &

24 Wyoming's midwest region.

25       Q.  And do you have personal knowledge of the details of
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1 this project?

2       A.  Yes, sir.

3       Q.  Okay.  This Petition --

4           MR. WETZEL:  Well, strike that.

5 BY MR. WETZEL:

6       Q.  We bring this Petition today for what reason, sir?

7       A.  Looking for installation of, approximately, 5,000

8 foot railroad siding in the town of Atteberry --

9       Q.  All right.

10       A.  -- with -- which requires some modifications to some

11 existing grade crossings.

12       Q.  Now, what is the purpose of this new line that we're

13 putting in?

14       A.  The siding would be used to facilitate a grain

15 unloading facility in the town of Atteberry.

16       Q.  Okay.  How far is this grain facility from the main

17 line?

18       A.  It would be adjacent -- it's just adjacent to our

19 existing right-of-way.

20       Q.  All right.  And how much additional track are we

21 going to be adding?

22       A.  It will be approximately 5,000 feet of track.

23       Q.  Where will that begin?

24       A.  Approximately a quarter mile railroad north of the

25 most northern street, which is Hardin Avenue, and then
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1 continuing south -- railroad south -- south of Atteberry

2 Street approximately a quarter of a mile.

3       Q.  Okay.  Now, the railroad through this area, what

4 direction does it run?

5       A.  It actually runs kind of north -- it runs northwest

6 and then southeast.

7       Q.  All right.  And you bring this Petition today

8 because it's going to cross two roads; is that correct?

9       A.  Yes, that's correct.

10       Q.  And which roads are those?

11       A.  That is Hardin and Atteberry.

12       Q.  All right.  I believe we attached to our Petition

13 several documents with regard to the various road crossings.

14 Are you familiar with those documents?

15       A.  Yes, sir.

16       Q.  And we've previously given these to the Court, we

17 can just go through them really quickly.  We've previously

18 marked A1.  What is A1?

19       A.  Illinois Commerce Commission Grade Crossing

20 Inventory Information.

21       Q.  And for what street is?

22       A.  This is for Atteberry.

23       Q.  All right.  And is all this information updated and

24 correct to your knowledge?

25       A.  To my knowledge, it is updated.
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1       Q.  Where did you obtain this information from?

2       A.  This is from the Illinois Commerce Commission's

3 website.

4       Q.  Okay.  Now, A2, what is this document?

5       A.  Illinois Commerce Commission Grade Crossing

6 Inventory Information for Hardin Avenue.

7       Q.  All right.  And did you obtain this document in the

8 same place as the last one?

9       A.  Yes, sir, that's correct.

10       Q.  We've also submitted an Exhibit B, and that's also

11 divided into B1 and B2.  What is exhibit B1?

12       A.  U.S. Department of Transportation Crossing Inventory

13 Information dated as 5/16/2013.

14       Q.  All right.  And the same questions with regard to

15 this, did -- is this up-to-date as far as you know?

16       A.  To my knowledge, it's up-to-date.

17       Q.  And where did you obtain this information?

18       A.  It's from FRA's database on their website.

19       Q.  And B2, what is that document?

20       A.  U.S. Department of Transportation Crossing Inventory

21 Information as of 5/16/2013.  And this is of Atteberry street,

22 which was obtained as the first, as B1.

23       Q.  And do you believe that this information is

24 up-to-date?

25       A.  To my knowledge, this is up-to-date.
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1       Q.  Okay.  We also have finally in Exhibit C that is

2 attached here, as well.  What is Exhibit C?

3       A.  Exhibit C is the Atteberry Street and Grade Crossing

4 Plan and Profile proposed -- Plan and Profile.

5       Q.  Is that current and up-to-date?

6       A.  Yes, sir, that's correct.

7       Q.  All right.  What is Exhibit D?

8       A.  D is the Plan Profile Hardin Avenue.

9       Q.  And is that document also up-to-date?

10       A.  Yes, sir, it is -- to my knowledge, that's

11 up-to-date.

12       Q.  All right.  And for the record, I believe we have

13 also submitted an Exhibit E.  Have you seen that document

14 before?

15       A.  Not until today.

16       Q.  All right.  And what is that?

17       A.  That's an aerial overview of the Town of Atteberry,

18 the area.

19       Q.  Do you have any reason to believe that that is not a

20 true and correct representation of the map of that area?

21       A.  No, sir, no reason to believe it's not accurate.  S.

22           MR. WETZEL:  All right.  And I would just like to

23 submit those into evidence, your Honor, all of those exhibits

24 formally.

25           JUDGE DUGGAN:  All right.  Mr. Toliver, have you
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1 seen the overview, the aerial?

2           MR. TOLIVER:  I have seen that today, yes.

3           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Can we just stipulate that

4 that's a fair and accurate representation of the -- well,

5 let's do this.

6    The Petition says that the roads run northwest/southeast,

7 southeastern or southwestern or whatever it was.  In fact,

8 that is not correct; is that correct, Mr. Wetzel?

9           MR. WETZEL:  That is correct, your Honor.

10           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  In fact, Hardin is a straight

11 east/west; is that correct?

12           MR. WETZEL:  That is correct.

13           JUDGE DUGGAN:  And Atteberry is a straight

14 north/south, correct?

15           MR. WETZEL:  That is correct.

16           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  So without amending the

17 Petition, you'd agree the Petition is wrong, correct?

18           MR. WETZEL:  That is absolutely right, your Honor.

19           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  And that the track as he

20 testified runs northeast/southwest.  So can we stipulate that

21 the positions of the road run north/south and east/west, and

22 the track running northwest/southeast, so the relative

23 positions are accurately depicted in Exhibit 5 [sic], can we

24 stipulate to that, Mr. Wetzel?

25           MR. WETZEL:  I would like to stipulate to that, your
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1 Honor.

2           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  And Mr. Tice, do you follow me

3 on that?

4           MR. TICE:  Not quite.  That's Exhibit E, you said or

5 --

6           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Yes, that's the overview you had.

7           MR. TICE:  That's correct, we stipulate.

8           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Mr. Toliver?

9           MR. TOLIVER:  Staff so stipulates.

10           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Very good.  And then you're

11 moving the admission of Exhibit E, correct?

12           MR. WETZEL:  Correct, your Honor.

13           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  So Exhibit E is admitted with

14 that stipulation, that's what it represents.

15           And any objections to Exhibits, A1, A2, B1, B2, C

16 and D, Mr. Tice?

17           MR. TICE:  No objections.

18           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Toliver?

19           MR. TOLIVER:  No objection, your Honor.

20           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Then all those exhibits are

21 admitted into evidence.  Anything further?

22           MR. WETZEL:  A couple more questions here, your

23 Honor.

24 BY MR. WETZEL:

25       Q.  What is the makeup of Hardin Road and Atteberry Road
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1 at this point in time?  What is the constructed material?

2       A.  Oh, I believe they are plain crossing, if I'm not

3 mistaken --

4           JUDGE DUGGAN:  And I'm sorry, once again, because of

5 the background, speak up, it would really help.

6           THE WITNESS:  I apologize, your Honor.  If I'm not

7 mistaken -- one second, please.

8           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Sure.

9           THE WITNESS:  They're both timber crossing.

10 BY MR. WETZEL:

11       Q.  All right.  And what is the construction of the

12 actual right-of-way of the road, in the road district, what is

13 that material made of for Hardin Road and Atteberry?

14       A.  Existing?

15       Q.  Yes.

16       A.  Oil and chip, if I'm not mistaken.

17           JUDGE DUGGAN:  And again, you're talking with him,

18 and you need to be able to talk with me, also.

19           THE WITNESS:  Oil and chip, your Honor.

20           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.

21 BY MR. WETZEL:

22       Q.  All right.  The crossings that are at these two

23 locations currently, there are existing crossings for the

24 railroad for these two locations; is that correct?

25       A.  Yes, that's correct.
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1       Q.  And is it just a single track?

2       A.  There's -- yes, a single track at both crossings.

3       Q.  Okay.  Currently what is the signage for those

4 crossings?

5       A.  Currently there are passing warning signs or cross

6 bucks at both locations.

7       Q.  Are there any warning signals for those locations?

8       A.  No, sir.

9       Q.  Okay.  Now, let's talk about the proposed upgrades

10 to each section.  With regard to -- and I believe we have

11 Atteberry first through all the exhibits, so I'll try to

12 follow that.  What are the proposed upgrades to the Atteberry

13 crossings?

14       A.  It would be addition of the siding track through

15 that grade crossing, and also be the addition of gates,

16 flashers and the appropriate circuitry to govern.

17       Q.  Is there going to be any upgrade made to the

18 material of the road on approach to the railroad crossing?

19       A.  The existing material will be removed, a new timber

20 surface, if I'm not mistaken, will be installed.

21       Q.  Okay.  And what about the approach coming up to the

22 railroad?

23       A.  And new pavement would be -- it will be paved -- hot

24 mix asphalt -- the recommended approaches to the grade

25 crossing.
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1       Q.  Will there be any markings on that asphalt?

2       A.  Also, as proposed, to install the stop bars and the

3 railroad markings on the pavement.

4       Q.  All right.  Are there any other proposed upgrades

5 that we're making to the Atteberry crossing?

6       A.  Not that -- to my knowledge.

7       Q.  Okay.  And are all of those represented in Exhibit

8 C?

9       A.  Yes, sir.

10       Q.  I believe in our Petition we stated that the

11 crossing will be widened from an original 32 track feet to a

12 40 track feet?

13       A.  Yes, that's correct.

14       Q.  All right.  And that is still the plan?

15       A.  That is correct.

16       Q.  All right.

17           JUDGE DUGGAN:  You say that was track feet?

18           MR. WETZEL:  Track feet, yes.

19           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.

20           MR. WETZEL:  32 track feet to 40 track feet.

21           JUDGE DUGGAN:  So by that, I presume you mean, the

22 width of the track as opposed to how long it takes to get over

23 the tracks.

24           MR. WETZEL:  Is that accurate?

25           THE WITNESS:  That's correct, your Honor.
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1 BY MR. WETZEL:

2       Q.  All right.  With regard to the Hardin crossing, what

3 upgrades are we proposing for the Hardin crossing?

4       A.  The installation of the siding track through that

5 grade crossing, removal of existing material on both the main

6 and the siding, replace with new timber, full deck crossing

7 material.  There will be new hot mix asphalt approaches as

8 proposed in exhibit both ways --

9       Q.  And that's Exhibit D?

10       A.  That's Exhibit D.  And also --

11           JUDGE DUGGAN:  D as in dog?

12           MR. WETZEL:  Correct.

13           THE WITNESS:  Also the recommendation of gates and

14 flashing lights with the appropriate circuitry.

15 MR. WETZEL:

16       Q.  All right.  Are we also widening this -- will the

17 crossing also be widened?

18       A.  Yes, also be widened from its existing -- the

19 existing dimensions of the crossing.

20       Q.  All right.  And what are the new dimensions going to

21 be?

22       A.  To 32 track feet.

23       Q.  All right.

24           JUDGE DUGGAN:  That's from 24 to 32?

25           THE WITNESS:  Yes, your Honor.
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1 BY MR. WETZEL:

2       Q.  And just to be clear with regard to the cost of this

3 project, do we have a final cost of this project at this time?

4       A.  No, sir, we do not.

5       Q.  Okay.  Are we expecting the road district to provide

6 any compensation or any funding for any part of this project?

7       A.  No, sir.

8       Q.  Do we expect the county to provide any money or any

9 funding to any part of this project?

10       A.  No, sir.

11       Q.  Who is going to bear the costs of this project?

12       A.  It would be under agreement with the industry.

13       Q.  And either the industry or the railroad will take

14 care of the costs involved in this project?

15       A.  That's correct.

16           JUDGE DUGGAN:  And by "industry", you mean Lincoln

17 Land --

18           MR. WETZEL:  Farm Service.

19           THE WITNESS:  Lincoln Land Farm Service, yes, your

20 Honor.

21 BY MR. WETZEL:

22       Q.  All right.  How many trains will be going over

23 this -- the proposed new track and how frequently?

24           JUDGE DUGGAN:  You're asking for only the proposed

25 new track?
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1           MR. WETZEL:  Yes.

2           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Only the side track?

3           MR. WETZEL:  The new sided track.

4           THE WITNESS:  One to two trains weekly.

5 BY MR. WETZEL:

6       Q.  And how long will each of these trains be, how many

7 cars?

8       A.  It's designed for a 25-car consist.

9       Q.  And how long would that train disrupt traffic at

10 either one of those locations?

11       A.  Not greater than 15 minutes -- not greater than 15

12 minutes.

13       Q.  All right.

14           JUDGE DUGGAN:  I heard you say 25 cars something, it

15 sounded like concept.

16           THE WITNESS:  Consist.  It's a train of 25 cars,

17 your Honor.

18           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Consist, C-O-N-S-I-S-T?

19           THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

20 BY MR. WETZEL:

21       Q.  Is there going to be a speed limit for this proposed

22 track?

23       A.  Not to exceed 10 miles an hour, and designed as

24 such.

25           MR. WETZEL:  All right.  I have nothing further,
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1 your Honor.

2           JUDGE DUGGAN:  All right.

3                        CROSS-EXAMINATION

4 BY JUDGE DUGGAN:

5       Q.  You talked about markings on Atteberry Road, and I

6 think you said something like stock [sic] bars and railroad?

7       A.  Markings per the MUTCD stop bar required, and then

8 the RRX as it's shown here in this proposed --

9           THE WITNESS:  Which exhibit was that?

10           MR. WETZEL:  C.

11 BY JUDGE DUGGAN:

12       Q.  Okay.  Are you saying that's presently at Atteberry,

13 or that's the improvement?

14       A.  That would be the improvement, your Honor.

15       Q.  Okay.  So when you refer to stock, S-T-O-C-K, bars,

16 B-A-R-S, that is the same as the reference to the RXRN as

17 Mr. Toliver referred to, correct?

18       A.  Actually, it's stop, S-T-O-P, bars.

19       Q.  Oh, okay.  S-T-O-P, okay.  All right.  And are you

20 going to put hot mix asphalt on both approaches?

21       A.  Yes.

22       Q.  Okay.  So you're anticipating putting the stop bars

23 as you refer to them on both approaches also, correct?

24       A.  Yes, your Honor.

25       Q.  Okay.  And would that be the same with Hardin?
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1       A.  The proposed -- yes, your Honor.

2       Q.  Once again, hot mix on both approaches and the

3 asphalt pavement markers?

4       A.  Yes, your Honor.

5       Q.  Very good.  So the crossings service itself will be

6 a timber, correct?

7       A.  Yes, sir.

8       Q.  And is that circuitry, is that constant warning time

9 circuitry?

10       A.  Yeah, I said appropriate circuitry, but I'm assuming

11 it would be a constant warning time system.

12           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Let's go off the record.

13 (THERE WAS A DISCUSSION OFF THE RECORD.)

14           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Back on the record.

15 BY JUDGE DUGGAN:

16       Q.  Mr. Weatherford, could you look at paragraph 12 of

17 the Petition?

18       A.  Yes, your Honor.

19       Q.  Do you see the proposals set out in paragraph 12 for

20 the automatic flashing light signals, gates, bells and a

21 caution warning time control circuitry with an event recorder

22 capable of accepting remote monitoring system?

23       A.  Yes, your Honor.

24       Q.  Okay.  Is that what you're proposing?

25       A.  Yes, your Honor.



20

1       Q.  Okay.  For both crossings, correct?

2       A.  Yes, your Honor.

3       Q.  All right.

4 (THERE WAS A PAUSE IN THE PROCEEDINGS.)

5 BY JUDGE DUGGAN:

6       Q.  Where is this FS facility in relation to Hardin or

7 Atteberry Street?

8       A.  Almost be centered between the two streets, your

9 Honor.

10       Q.  All right.  On Exhibit E, does that look like around

11 the intersection of High Street and Oakford Street?

12       A.  Yes, sir, that would be correct.

13       Q.  And I think we might have been off the record, but

14 you indicated that it was about .3 railroad miles between the

15 Hardin crossing and the Atteberry crossing; is that correct?

16       A.  Yes, your Honor, that's estimated.

17       Q.  All right.  So that's about 1700 feet.  And how long

18 would the 25-car train be?

19       A.  About 1500 feet.

20       Q.  Okay.  So you could actually fit between them, but

21 obviously not everything is going happen on the center of the

22 train, so you do anticipate stopping and blocking either or

23 both crossings; is that correct?

24       A.  Actually, still working through the operation issue,

25 but I think the design is that we would have areas at each --
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1 on north and south -- railroad north and south of those

2 crossing where cars could be stored and staged for loading, so

3 I think there would be a five car sections at a time to

4 minimize the filing of the crossing and the site clearance.

5       Q.  So you would break off five cars and pull them in

6 separately after -- load five cars, run five cars, and then go

7 back and get another five?

8       A.  Yes, your Honor.

9       Q.  So that's the anticipated plan?

10       A.  That's the anticipated plan, yes, your Honor.

11       Q.  But is the plan that you would normally be loading

12 or unloading all 25 cars as you pass by?

13       A.  I'm sorry, your Honor?

14       Q.  If you have a 25-car train --

15       A.  Uh-huh.

16       Q.  -- even if you break it down to five each, is it

17 anticipated that you would be loading or unloading all 25 cars

18 when the train goes through?

19       A.  Actually, those 25 cars would be spotted on the

20 siding track, then the industry will hostle [phonetic] or move

21 the cars at five cars at a time through the loading facility,

22 and then they will store them to the south -- like I said, the

23 operation plans are still being developed, but --

24       Q.  Are you suggesting that the FS is going to haul the

25 cars, move the cars around?
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1       A.  Once they are spotted onto that siding track, yes,

2 you Honor, they will be moved by the industry.

3       Q.  So even if there are only one or two trains a week,

4 they may be broken down and sitting there on the siding track?

5       A.  That's correct, your Honor.

6       Q.  So there will almost always be trains sitting on the

7 side track?

8       A.  I'm speculating, but I would say it's probably

9 seasonal, but there is that possibility there could be cars

10 there at any time.

11       Q.  And does Illinois-Midland have a policy for how far

12 off the track it stores?

13       A.  250 feet.

14 (THERE WAS A PAUSE IN THE PROCEEDINGS.)

15 BY JUDGE DUGGAN:

16       Q.  Is the track to be built pretty much so that the

17 section north of Hardin is approximately equal to the section

18 south of Atteberry?

19       A.  Yes, your Honor.

20       Q.  So roughly 1700 between the streets, 1700 running

21 north, 1700 running south, to equal 5100 feet?

22       A.  Yes, your Honor, estimated, yes.

23       Q.  So you would have 1700 feet to store -- to pull

24 250 feet away from the crossing -- how long is each car?

25       A.  I just estimated 65 feet, but that may be a
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1 little -- just depends, but that's what I kind of use for

2 estimating purposes.

3 (THERE WAS A PAUSE IN THE PROCEEDINGS.)

4 BY JUDGE DUGGAN:

5       Q.  And to your FS 250-foot policy?

6       A.  To my knowledge -- I actually shouldn't say that,

7 your Honor.  I'm not sure if they're aware of that or not.

8       Q.  But in any event you intend to enforce compliance

9 with that policy?

10       A.  Yes, your Honor.

11       Q.  It looks like you could do it, but you would be

12 pretty close storing -- storing eight on -- then 12 on one

13 side, and 12 on the other, but you can't put all 25 either on

14 one side or the middle --

15       A.  I think it was designed for 17 and 8 was how that

16 was broken apart to maintain that 250-foot clearance.

17       Q.  17 on, say, south of Atteberry, and 8 north

18 something like that.

19       A.  17 and then 8 between Hardin and Atteberry.  Once

20 they load them, there had to be enough room there for that 8,

21 so you have to have room for 25 cars -- head room for 25 cars,

22 tail room, so it was broke up from the load out, 8 cars

23 between the load out and Hardin, these are empties.

24    And then there would be 17 cars north of Hardin to the

25 derail or the switch.  And then they would load those 8, shove
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1 them back south to the switch, and break up the other one.

2 Like I said, the operation is not concrete, but -- the plan

3 anyway.

4       Q.  Okay.  What you just said was storing 17 north of

5 Hardin, 8 between the crossings, correct?

6       A.  Correct.

7       Q.  Okay.  And then you said something about pulling

8 them south to the switch, meaning the connection of the new

9 side track to the existing track, right?

10       A.  As they would load out, we would go south, is my

11 understanding.

12       Q.  Is it your understanding that both of these

13 crossings are in the city limit of Atteberry?

14       A.  I'm sorry, your Honor?

15       Q.  Is it your understanding that both of these

16 crossings are in the city limits of Atteberry?

17       A.  Yes, your Honor.

18       Q.  And it's your understanding that Atteberry Road is a

19 county -- under the county jurisdiction?

20       A.  Yes, your Honor.

21       Q.  That's County of Menard, correct?

22       A.  Yes, your Honor.

23       Q.  And Hardin street is under Road District 5 within

24 that county, correct?

25       A.  Yes, your Honor.
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1           MR. TICE:  Your Honor, I think we can stipulate for

2 the record that the Town of Atteberry is not, in fact, an

3 incorporated municipality.  It is unincorporated.  There is no

4 official governing body for the town.

5           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Very good.

6           MR. TICE:  It's just a community.

7           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Thank you.

8           MR. WETZEL:  Your Honor, can we go off the record

9 for a second?

10           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Off the record.

11 (THERE WAS AN OFF-THE-RECORD DISCUSSION.)

12           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Let's go back on the record.

13 BY JUDGE DUGGAN:

14       Q.  Looking at the inventory forms here, I note in

15 Exhibits A1 and A2, both of them report an average number of

16 daily trains of zero.

17    Off the record we had a discussion, where I believe that

18 you believed your best estimate is approximately three trains

19 a week; is that correct?

20       A.  Yes, your Honor.

21       Q.  Okay.  And where the A1 and A2 both state that the

22 likely speeds of the train is between 25 and 40, I believe you

23 that you've indicated that the speeds are 30 miles per hour;

24 is that correct?

25       A.  Yes, your Honor.
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1       Q.  Also, just to ask an adequate reflection that the

2 average daily traffic was shown on A1 for Atteberry Street as

3 250 with 24 percent trucks; isn't that correct, that's what it

4 says?

5       A.  Yes, your Honor.

6       Q.  Okay.  And for Hardin, it says 50 average daily

7 traffic with a 0 percent of trucks.  Is that what the

8 inventory says, correct?

9       A.  Yes, your Honor.

10       Q.  Very good.  And these designs and plans and profiles

11 admitted as C and D, they are sufficiently closely and final

12 that if the Commission orders the work done consistent with

13 these plans, will that be sufficient?

14       A.  Yes, your Honor.

15           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Mr. Tice, questions.

16           MR. TICE:  I have one question, your Honor.

17                        CROSS-EXAMINATION

18 BY MR. TICE:

19       Q.  I'd like Mr. Weatherford to look at paragraph 13 of

20 Illinois-Midland Railroad's Petition.  The last two lines of

21 that paragraph Mr. Weatherford states that the

22 Illinois-Midland Railroad will assume maintenance costs of the

23 crossings surface and the signal equipment once it's been

24 placed in service; is that your correct understanding?

25       A.  Yes, sir, that's my correct understanding.
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1       Q.  You're not looking then to either the Road District

2 No. 5 or the Menard County Highway Authority to incur any of

3 those costs of maintenance of the signaling or the surface of

4 the crossing itself; is that correct?

5       A.  That's correct.

6       Q.  Now, when you say the Illinois-Midland Railroad will

7 assume maintenance costs of the crossing surface, is that just

8 the surface between the rails and the surface leading up to

9 either of the two rails comprising each rail line, or does

10 that include also any portion of the roadway leading up to

11 that crossing?

12       A.  There would be a certain section of the roadway

13 within our right-of-way that we'll be responsible for.

14       Q.  So from the -- what would be the northeast

15 right-of-way line of the railroad, where it crosses Atteberry

16 Street, to the southwest right-of-way line of the railroad,

17 where it crosses Atteberry Street, would be the area of

18 maintenance that would be assumed by Illinois-Midland

19 Railroad?

20       A.  You would have to repeat those to me one more time

21 to verify here on --

22       Q.  Take Exhibit E, if you would.  Examine Exhibit E.

23 Find -- when you're looking at the north and find Atteberry

24 Street?

25       A.  Yes.
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1       Q.  See where it crosses the Illinois-Midland rail line

2 going from northwest to southeast?

3       A.  Yes.

4       Q.  All right.  My question then is, is the area of

5 maintenance assumed by Illinois-Midland Railroad for that

6 crossing at Atteberry Street, does it commence at the -- what

7 would be the north -- north right-of-way line of the railroad

8 and extend all the way to the south right-of-way line of the

9 railroad -- right-of-way?

10       A.  Yes, I agree with that.

11       Q.  And then looking at Exhibit E again, and finding

12 Hardin Avenue running east and west?

13       A.  Yes.

14       Q.  And looking at the location on Exhibit E where

15 Hardin Avenue -- Hardin Avenue intersects with the

16 Illinois-Midland Railroad right-of-way, did you find that?

17       A.  Yes.

18       Q.  And if I asked you the same questions that I asked

19 you on Atteberry Street with regard to the area of maintenance

20 assumed by the Illinois-Midland Railroad for the Hardin Avenue

21 crossing of the railroad right-of-way would your answer be the

22 same?

23       A.  Yes, sir.

24           MR. TICE:  I have no other questions.

25           JUDGE DUGGAN:  And let me ask you a few more for
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1 clean up that I don't know that it got on the record.

2                       RECROSS EXAMINATION

3 BY JUDGE DUGGAN:

4       Q.  The plan for each additional -- or excuse me.  The

5 plan for each crossing is that the siding track would be built

6 at -- parallel to the existing track 15 feet southwest of the

7 existing main track, and that 15 feet is measured from the

8 center of existing track to the center of the new track,

9 correct?

10       A.  Yes, your Honor.

11       Q.  Okay.  And the Illinois-Midland Railroad is the one

12 that runs from Pekin to Springfield, Illinois about 67 miles;

13 is that correct?

14       A.  Yes, your Honor.

15       Q.  And the plans for extending what you refer to as the

16 track width of the crossing would also include plans for

17 widening the roadway on the approaches, correct?

18       A.  That's correct your Honor.

19       Q.  Is that depicted in the plans and profiles, Exhibit

20 C and D?

21       A.  Yes, your Honor.

22       Q.  All right.  But that widening would still remain

23 within the road authorities right-of-way, correct?

24       A.  My knowledge, your Honor -- yes, your Honor.

25       Q.  And while you may have an agreement with FS for them
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1 to undertake certain responsibilities, you understand that

2 nonetheless the primary responsibility is going to remain with

3 the railroad?

4       A.  Yes, your Honor.

5       Q.  Okay.  So if the Order is granted would require

6 that, in fact, the railroad -- the Petitioner will be

7 responsible for maintenance of all these crossing surfaces and

8 the costs thereof?

9       A.  Yes, your Honor.

10       Q.  Okay.  And in fact, it usually provides for only 2

11 feet from the outside track for the maintenance of the

12 roadway, okay?

13       A.  Yes, your Honor.

14       Q.  I mean, that's within your -- the understanding of

15 what -- the responsibility you were willing to undertake?

16       A.  Yes, your Honor.

17           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Let's go off the record.

18 (THERE WAS AN OFF-THE-RECORD DISCUSSION.)

19           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Let's go back on the record.

20 Off the record discussion here, hopefully we've clarified

21 that -- again, what's -- I'll refer to as the RXRN pavement

22 markings, which will either be some type of a thermal plastic

23 or paint that it's contemplated here, and I think the railroad

24 is going to agree, so I'm asking you this, that you're

25 agreeing to be responsible for the initial installation of
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1 that along with the road approaches, and with the

2 understanding that future maintenance outside of 2 feet from

3 the outside rail of each track will be the responsibility of

4 the road authorities, including maintenance of that RXRN

5 pavement markings.  Is that understanding and your agreement

6 Mr. Wetzel?

7           MR. WETZEL:  Yes, your Honor.

8           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  And also confirmed by

9 Mr. Weatherford, correct?

10           THE WITNESS:  Yes, your Honor.

11           JUDGE DUGGAN:  All right.

12 (THERE WAS A PAUSE IN THE PROCEEDINGS.)

13           JUDGE DUGGAN:  I think that's all I had.  Any

14 follow-up, Mr. Tice?

15           MR. TICE:  No.

16           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Toliver?

17           MR. TOLIVER:  Yes, your Honor, just a couple of

18 quick questions as far as the Exhibits C and D.

19                        CROSS-EXAMINATION

20 BY MR. TOLIVER:

21       Q.  With respect to Exhibit C for Atteberry Street,

22 there is shown the profile of the pavement as proposed was --

23 were the Illinois Administrative Code Grade Requirements

24 considered in the design of the roadway profile?

25       A.  Yes, sir.
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1       Q.  And it shows a couple of red lines on the plan,

2 which would be overlooking down on the crossing, it kind of

3 jets out a little bit from the black lines that represent the

4 edge of the road.  What do those red lines represent?

5       A.  Aggregate shoulder.

6       Q.  The shoulder.  So with this project the -- the --

7 this shoulder be added to the -- to the existing width of the

8 pavement?

9       A.  That's correct.  Yes, I'm sorry, it's turf or

10 aggregate shoulder.  It says minimum 2 foot.

11       Q.  Okay.  And the crossing surfaces are of a sufficient

12 width to encompass the width of the roadway plus the aggregate

13 or turf shoulder; is that correct?

14       A.  Yes, sir.

15       Q.  Okay.  And the same questions for Exhibit D.  The

16 profile is appropriate for the Illinois Administrative Code,

17 and the surface is wide enough to encompass the roadway width

18 plus the shoulder; is that correct?

19       A.  Yes, sir.

20       Q.  Okay.  Also, the exhibit show what appear to be sort

21 of proposed locations for the warning devices.  As a

22 information only really, are the actual plans for each -- for

23 each crossing for the warning devices, will they will be

24 submitted to the Commission with the Form 3 Petition?

25       A.  Yes, sir.
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1       Q.  Okay.  And the final approval for those warning

2 devices will be -- will be pursuant to the issuance of the

3 next resolution of the Commission?

4       A.  Yes, sir.

5           MR. TOLIVER:  Okay.  That's all I have, your Honor.

6           JUDGE DUGGAN:  All right.  Then I want to state what

7 my understanding is with regard to the compatible road

8 surfaces, pavement markings, and what the MUTCD requires and

9 see if we can stipulate to that understanding or get

10 clarification.

11    But with the advanced pavement marking, again, what

12 Mr. Toliver refers to as RXNR, and what Mr. Weatherford has

13 referred to as the stop bars, that generally those are

14 supposed to be installed in accordance with the MUTCD, that

15 the MUTCD requires them only with a surface that -- a paved

16 surface, that hot mix asphalt surface is included in the

17 definition of pavement surfaces.

18    And that so long as the approaches of the roadway is of hot

19 mix asphalt or concrete surface of that nature far enough out

20 from the tracks where the pavement markers are supposed to be

21 installed, then they are required to be installed, and that

22 would be part of what is required in this Order.

23    However, there appears to be some contemplation that the

24 hot mix asphalt contemplated by the plans and the railroad

25 here will need to be maintained, any they may be maintained in
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1 a few years by the road authorities with a chip and seal,

2 which is not considered to be a paved surface, which would

3 require the pavement markings under the MUTCD.

4    And since the Order would only require compliance with the

5 MUTCD that the road surface changed, so it did not require the

6 MUTCD, then the road authorities would be in compliance

7 without reinstalling that.  However, if they would install the

8 hot mix asphalt they would be -- the road authorities would be

9 responsible for reinstalling the advanced pavement markings.

10    Is that your understanding, Mr. Wetzel?

11           MR. WETZEL:  Yes, it is, your Honor.

12           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Is that your understanding, Mr. Tice?

13           MR. TICE:  Yes, sir.

14           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Toliver?

15           MR. TOLIVER:  That is my understanding, your Honor.

16           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  And we'll note that, as I

17 did previously, that county engineer for Menard County,

18 Mr. Tom Casson is here with us today.

19    And Mr. Casson, did you understand my explanation of the

20 obligations for the advanced pavement markings and their

21 relationship to the road surface?

22           MR. CASSON:  Yes, sir.

23           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Do you have any disagreement

24 with that as the understanding and correct application of the

25 law?
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1           MR. CASSON:  No, sir.

2           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  Mr. Casson, what is the

3 position on behalf of the county with regard to the projects

4 presented here today -- excuse me a second.  You have

5 jurisdiction -- the county only has jurisdiction over

6 Atteberry Road; is that correct?

7           MR. CASSON:  Yes, sir.

8           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  What is your position with

9 regard to the suggested modifications to the crossing at

10 Atteberry Road.

11           MR. CASSON:  We're in favor of it.

12           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Very good.  Mr. Toliver, what

13 is your position?

14           MR. TOLIVER:  Staff of the Commission has no

15 objection to the addition of the second track through the

16 crossing and the installation of the automatic flashing light

17 signals with gates and the bell, constant warning time

18 circuitry, and an event recorder capable of a remote

19 monitoring system, and all of the roadway improvements as

20 contemplated in Exhibit C and D.

21           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  Mr. Tice, your client

22 does have jurisdiction other the Hardin Road crossing; is that

23 correct?

24           MR. TICE:  That's correct.

25           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  And what is your client's
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1 position with regard to the project proposed here today for

2 that crossing?

3           MR. TICE:  Road District 5 is in favor of the

4 project as proposed and testified to by the Illinois-Midland

5 Railroad and as stipulated by the respected parties.

6           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  Thank you.

7    Now, I will be drafting an Order.  There is a prohibition

8 against ex parte communications, which means that neither I

9 nor Mr. Toliver can talk with anyone of you about this case

10 unless we're all here.

11    And sometimes it helps to write an Order if I have

12 Mr. Toliver's input.  And then frankly, if we can also

13 informally run things by you, which we could do, I would

14 propose, if you would agree that once -- I'm going to ask you

15 for a waiver of this ex parte is what I'm asking you for.

16    And if so, then I could get an Order, Mr. Toliver's input,

17 until we think that is sufficient to run by you, and then all

18 communications would then by e-mail to everybody, so that

19 everybody would get the same message.  And that if you reply

20 back to us, we would ask that you include everybody so that

21 everybody's receiving the same communication back through us.

22    And then once we had your input, hopefully resolve any

23 issues informally in that fashion, then I could issue a formal

24 proposed order, and we would ask -- hopefully by that time,

25 you would all say that -- file responses stating that you were
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1 fine with it, because you knew what was coming.

2    With that in mind, I'm asking if you are willing to waive

3 the ex parte prohibition for those purposes.  Mr. Wetzel?

4           MR. WETZEL:  Yes, we are, your Honor.

5           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Mr. Tice?

6           MR. TICE:  We are, your Honor.

7           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  And Mr. Casson, on behalf of

8 the county, do you believe that you followed what I just

9 explained?

10           MR. CASSON:  Yes, sir.

11           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Okay.  Would you be willing to waive

12 an ex parte requirement?

13           MR. CASSON:  In that context, yes, sir.

14           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Very good.  And does Mr. Toliver have

15 your e-mail --

16           THE WITNESS:  Yes, sir.

17           JUDGE DUGGAN:  -- you use that as a primary means?

18           MR. TOLIVER:  I believe I have e-mails for everybody

19 at the table here.

20           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Would that work for you as I

21 described it?

22           MR. TOLIVER:  For me?

23           JUDGE DUGGAN:  For Mr. Casson.

24           MR. CASSON:  Yes, sir, that would be fine.

25           JUDGE DUGGAN:  And Mr. Toliver, you're willing to
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1 waive that ex parte, also?

2           MR. TOLIVER:  Yes, your Honor.

3           MR. TICE:  Your Honor, I have one point.  I had

4 entered my appearance in written form in this matter back in

5 August -- August 21st it was filed and set forth my e-mail, as

6 well as my mailing address and phone number, Mr. Wethington's

7 address and phone number, but we -- neither one of us received

8 the notice of the hearing today, so I just want to make sure

9 that our -- at least my e-mail and address is in the record.

10           MR. TOLIVER:  You got a copy?

11           JUDGE DUGGAN:  I unfortunately don't get copies of

12 the service list.

13           MR. TICE:  I think we're on the service list, so I

14 don't know really what happened then.

15           JUDGE DUGGAN:  Well, then the actual mailing list is

16 taken from there, but it's not what is used to generate the --

17           MR. WETHINGTON:  I think we got the additional one.

18           JUDGE DUGGAN:  One second.  Off the record.

19 (THERE WAS AN OFF-THE-RECORD DISCUSSION.)

20           JUDGE DUGGAN:  The record is marked here and taken.

21 Thank you.

22 (THE HEARING WAS CONCLUDED AT 3:46 P.M.)

23

24

25
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